
 

 
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

January 27, 2016 

 

Page 1 of 2  
 

 

.. 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

January 27, 2016 
Workshop 6:00 PM · Regular Session Items 7:00 PM 

 

 

1) CONVENE COUNCIL MEETING_________________________________________________ ____________ 
1A. Call Council Meeting to Order 
1B. Pledge of Allegiance 
1C. Roll Call 
1D. Approval of Agenda Order 
This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change to the agenda sequence. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 
 

2) WORKSHOP___________________________________________________________________________ 
2A. Presentation on Circulation Element and Potential Traffic Improvements –  

Amy Feagans, Planning Director 
2B. Public Comments 
2C. Questions and Answers 
 

15 Minute Stretch Break 
 

3) PRESENTATIONS___(Approximately 7:00PM)_________________________________________________ 
3A. Introduce New Colfax Librarian Amie Toepfer 
 Mary George, Placer County Library Director 
 

4) CONSENT CALENDAR____________________________________________________________________ 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine in nature and will be approved by one 
blanket motion with a roll call vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless persons request 
specific items to be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and separate action.  Any items removed 
will be considered after the motion to approve the Consent Agenda. If you wish to have an item pulled from the 
Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the City staff. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Consent Calendar 
4A.  Minutes City Council Meeting of January 13, 2016 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 13, 2016. 
4B. Cash Summary Report - December, 2015 

Recommendation:  Receive and File. 
4C. Quarterly Investment - December 2015 
 Recommendation:  Receive and File. 
4D. Plumbing Modifications for Dual Train Process Control at the Wastewater Treatment Facility  

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 05-2016 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Commercial Pump Service, Inc. for Plumbing Modifications of Critical Treatment Processes at the 
Wastewater Treatment Facility in the Estimated Amount of $13,108.48. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 

Page 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

FOR THE JANUARY 27, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
** PUBLC WORKSHOP** 

CIRCULATION ELEMENT OF THE GENERAL PLAN 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Amy Feagans, Planning Director 

DATE: January 19, 2016 

SUBJECT: Public Workshop to Provide Informational Update from the Ad Hoc Committee 
regarding an Update of the Circulation Element of the General Plan 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive public input – Provide direction to staff as appropriate 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

At the September 9, 2015 City Council meeting, the Council established an ad hoc committee to review and 
make recommendations on the options for updating the Circulation Element of the General Plan. 
Councilmembers Hesch and Harvey were appointed along with the City Manager, Community Services 
Director, and Planning Director.  The committee met a number of times over the past four months to 
review the element and explore opportunities to update the overly restrictive and outdated language – 
particularly the language in Policy 3.5.1.2 which states “Maintain a level “C” service standard for City 
intersections and roadways.” 
 

The committee discussed options to update this policy including: 
 

1. Prepare a significant update of the Circulation Element to recognize current practices in 
transportation planning and develop appropriate mitigation policies as necessary. 
 

This would require significant staff work and the level of environmental work necessary to be in 
compliance with CEQA would most likely require services of outside consultants.  Additionally, an 
update of the Circulation element may also trigger some level of update to the Land Use element 
as the two must be internally consistent by state law. 

 

2. Amend the Circulation element and rewrite policy 3.5.1.2 (and other policies as may be appropriate) 
to be less restrictive and to include more flexible language. 

 

This would also require some environmental determination but could most-likely be completed in 
house by current staff. A review (a possible minor amendment) of the Land Use element to ensure 
internal consistency would also be required. 

ITEM 2A
1 of 6





 

Page 3 

 

NEXT STEPS 
 

After receiving comment at this public workshop, the Council may wish to provide direction to staff 
regarding the proposed revisions to the Circulation Element policy 3.5.1.2 as suggested by the committee 
and also discuss the roundabout option as presented in the consultant’s memo. 
 

Once a decision has been made regarding the preferred alternative for revising the Circulation Element 
policy, environmental review in accordance CEQA requirements will be prepared as this action will be 
considered a General Plan Amendment and therefore a “project” per CEQA guidelines.  
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends the Council review and consider the proposed language to revise policy 3.5.1.2, review 
and consider the attached memorandum regarding a traffic roundabout, accept public comment on the 
proposals and provide direction to staff as appropriate. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT: 
Memorandum dated January 8, 2016 from Mark Thomas & Company, Inc. 
 

ITEM 2A
3 of 6









City of Colfax 1 
City Council Minutes January 13, 2016 
 

 

City Council Minutes 
Regular Meeting of Wednesday, January 13, 2016 
City Hall Council Chambers  •		33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 
 

 

 

1 CONVENE CLOSED SESSION 
 

1A. Mayor Parnham called the meeting to order at 6:00PM. 
1B. Roll Call 

Councilmembers present:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, and Stockwin 
Absent:  None 

1C. Public Comment – Closed Session Items 

No public comment 
 

Mayor Parnham recused himself from the first closed session item because he is a 
member of the Union.  Speaking as a member of the public, he reminded Council that 
employee morale is priceless and the importance of getting through the negotiations as 
quickly and cleanly as possible. 
 

1D. Closed Session Agenda 

Conference with Labor Negotiators pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 
Employee Organization: General Employees and Bargaining Unit Represented by 
Operating Engineers, Local 39 City's Designated Representative:  Mark Miller 
 

Public employee performance evaluation pursuant to Government Code Section 54957  
Title: City Manager 
 

2 CONVENE OPEN SESSION 
 

Mayor Parnham called the Open Session to order at 7:01PM. 
 

2A. Pledge of Allegiance:  Councilmember Hesch led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
2B. Report from Closed Session – no reportable action. 
2C. Roll Call 

Councilmembers present:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham and Stockwin 
Absent: None 

2D. Approval of Agenda 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Parnham, seconded by Councilmember Stockwin, the City 
Council approved the agenda. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
ABSENT: None 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 4A





City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes January 13, 2016 
 

Councilmember Hesch complimented the audit team for a well written report and 
commended staff for an audit with no exceptions. 
Councilmember	Stockwin	commented	that	the	question	“Is	the	City	better	or	worse	than	a	
year ago?”	was	not	explicitly	answered	and	it	would	have	been	helpful	if	the	report	were	
more direct in answering that question. 
City Manager Miller mentioned the audit report includes information about the overall 
City condition and states that the infrastructure of the City is in need of repair.  The 
surplus funds now in the reserve accounts can be used as an investment in that 
infrastructure. 
There were no comments from the public. 
On a motion by Councilmember Stockwin, seconded by Councilmember Hesch, Council 
approved the audit report. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
NOES:  None 
 

3C. Presentation from	 Placer	 County	 Sheriff’s	 Office, Overview of Colfax Law 
Enforcement 
Sergeant Ty Conners gave an overview of Law Enforcement in Colfax.  As the Commander 
of the Colfax Substation for four years he has seen the calls for services ebb and flow.  A 
PowerPoint presentation covered the hours worked by officers and the areas they service 
which includes the City and surrounding areas.  He mentioned the contributions of the 
volunteers	 and	 outreach	 activities	 including	 “Dogs	 and	 Chats”	 and the OUR Colfax 
webpage.  One critical element of the	 sheriff’s	office services are the special units (K-9, 
Search and Rescue, etc.) provided at no additional cost.  The majority of the presentation 
focused on presenting trends in calls to service and officer initiated contacts within and 
outside of City limits during the last 3 years.  Overall, more police activity is demonstrated 
and	 approximately	 75%	 of	 the	 officer’s	 time	 is	 within	 City	 limits. He stated the 
Department is investing more than $288,000 into the Colfax area than is in the contract. 
The statistics point to an increase in calls to service and Council asked if that is related to 
more crime or more public awareness.  Sergeant Conners suspects that the increase is due 
to more repeat offenders who are not given jail time because of Proposition 47.  Overall, 
Law Enforcement believes Colfax is a good place to live, especially with the cooperation 
among first responder groups.  The officers assigned to the Colfax area pride themselves 
in treating Colfax well. 
 

4 CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

4A. Minutes City Council Meeting of December 9, 2015 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 9, 2015. 

4B. CalRecycle Payment Plan 
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 01-2016 Authorizing Submittal of Application 
for Payment Programs to CalRecycle, and Related Authorizations. 

4C. Closed Landfill Land Clearing Agreement 
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 02-2016 Authorizing the City Manager to 
Execute an Agreement with All Phase Land Clearing for Vegetation Maintenance at the 
Closed Landfill. 
 
 

ITEM 4A
3 of 8



City of Colfax 4 
City Council Minutes January 13, 2016 
 

4D. Placer County Transportation Planning Agency Funding Claims and Agreements 
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 03-2016 Authorizing the City Manager to File 
Claims or Execute Agreements for Local Transportation Funds in the Amount of $110,664 
for Streets and Roads Purposes (Article 8 – Section 99400 of the California Public Utilities 
Code) and Local Transportation Funds of $4,657 for Transit Services (Article 8C, Section 
99400C of the California Public Utilities Code). 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Harvey pulled Item 4A from the Consent Calendar in order to abstain 
from voting on the minutes due to his absence at the previous Council meeting. 
Mayor Parnham and resident Ted Back asked for discussion for Item 4C.  
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Harvey, seconded by Councilmember Stockwin, Council 
approved the Items 4B and 4D of the Consent Calendar. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
ABSENT: None 
 

 Item 4A.  Minutes of the December 9, 2015 Meeting 
On a motion by Councilmember Hesch, seconded by Councilmember Stockwin, Council 
approved the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 9, 2015 as written. 
AYES:  Douglass, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
ABSTAIN: Harvey 
 

4E. Item 4C.  Closed Landfill Land Clearing Agreement 
Mayor Parnham commented that in the past City employees kept the landfill cleared and 
the City should increase staff so that this task can once again be performed in-house. 
Ted Back, 210 Sunrise Ave, stated that this project is “made to order” for the California 
Conservation Corps (CCC) and suggested that the City reconsider hiring them to masticate 
the landfill.  He gave a detailed analysis of the project and how he felt the CCC would be 
better suited for the project than the company recommended by staff. 
Mayor Parnham thanked Mr. Back for taking the time to investigate the matter and come 
to Council with his suggestion. 
City Manager Miller stated that he agreed with Mr. Back that the CCC is a great resource.  
The City had in fact asked for a quote from the CCC which came in about $2000 higher 
than the recommended company.  The landfill overgrowth currently exceeds the 
capability of the Corps as well as City staff.  It is a fire danger which needs to be sprayed 
and not just pulled by hand.  Staff will definitely contact the CCC for projects in the future. 
Councilmember Hesch stated that at a recent visit to the site he met Placer County 
Environmental Health Department Inspector Paul Holloway. Mr. Holloway was inspecting 
the landfill and gave great accolades to Community Services Director Wes Heathcock. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Hesch, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harvey, Council 
adopted Resolution 02-2016 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with 
All Phase Land Clearing for Vegetation Maintenance at the Closed Landfill. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
ABSENT: None 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 4A
4 of 8





City of Colfax 6 
City Council Minutes January 13, 2016 
 

5B. City Operations – City Staff 
City Manager Miller  

 City Manager Miller attended a 3 hour workshop for City Managers about the new 
Medical Marijuana laws.  The City must act quickly to ensure that the City 
maintains control of regulations.  Staff will bring a recommendation for an Urgency 
Ordinance to Council at the next meeting. 

 Staff has received the preliminary report from the Feasibility Study and plan to 
have a public Workshop at the January 27, 2016 meeting. 

 The next agenda will also include an item for selecting a new representative to 
SACOG, a liaison to the League of California Cities and a Councilmember to work 
with staff and developers for a recreational use plan for the closed landfill. 

 Staff was able to quickly avoid a dangerous condition by repairing a sinkhole on 
South Auburn.   

 The Mobil311 program is set to go online soon and staff will bring a demonstration 
to Council as soon as possible. 

 Dollar General is open for business.  Beach Hut Deli will be opening soon.  A 
Taqueria and a Soap manufacturer have both received business licenses. 
 

5C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 
Chris Nave, California Highway Patrol (CHP) Public Information Officer 

 CHPS for Kids was successful – 50 families were assisted with Christmas gifts. 
 He will conduct a Start Smart class for teens on January 30, 2016 at Empire Driving 

School. 
 The next “Coffee with a Cop” in Colfax will be in April. 

Frank Klein, Colfax Chamber of Commerce President 
 Thanked Mr. Howard and Ms. Molloy for their work on Winterfest and as Chamber 

board members. 
 He thanked the Soroptomist and Lioness clubs for their charitable events on the 

same day as Winterfest making the day a truly community effort.   
 The Annual Chamber Meeting will be January 27, 2016 from 11:30-1:30 at Dine-N-

Dash.  Council is invited.  The new board members will be installed:  Paul Rogers, 
Tim Ryan, Gary Howard and Frank Klein.   Lunch will be $20. 

Sergeant Ty Conners, Placer County Sheriff Colfax Substation Commander 
 As a follow-up to the Skate Park presentation, the Colfax Record and the Auburn 

Journal featured an article about the proposed site.  He will be conducting a 
community outreach and survey in the near future. 

 Sergeant Conners commented that officers and City staff are working with Union 
Pacific Railroad to curtail trespassing issues at the Fruit Sheds. 

Forrest Rowell, CALFire Colfax Station 
 The Colfax City Volunteer Fire Department (CVFD) is in transition.  He will be 

working with the Department to rebuild the volunteer team and replace 
equipment.  Currently CVFD has four active members, enough to run one crew and 
he would like to see that number doubled. 

 CALFire will be working with the City to mitigate the impact of the Bark Beetle 
problem. 
 
 

ITEM 4A
6 of 8



City of Colfax 7 
City Council Minutes January 13, 2016 
 

6 PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Foxey McCleary, 127 Saunders Lane 
 Announced the Sierra Vista Community Center (SVCC) Chocolate, Wine, and Art 

Indulgence fundraiser will be held April 30, 2016 from 6PM-9PM.  The cost is $15 
this year.  The SVCC is more active than it has been and is now in need of more 
funds.  Please plan to attend. 

 Winterfest was the best in recent years 
 Ms. McCleary has permits to paint two of the Main Street business facades with 

murals in the near future. 
 The art group will host a painting and wine class on January 22, 2016 for $30.  

Jim Dion, owner of the Colfax Theater 
 Expressed gratitude that the Council will discuss the medical marijuana issue soon.  

He offered the theater as a venue if the Council would like to schedule a forum for 
discussion 

 

7 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 

7A. Draft Update Sales Tax Agreement with Winner Chevrolet  
STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and discuss draft updated sales tax, property and lease 
agreement with Winner Chevrolet 
City Manager Miller stated the agenda packet includes the latest draft of an agreement 
with Winner Chevrolet.  Since 2010, the City has received about $400,000 increased 
general fund revenue on the current agreement as well as about $400,000 toward 
acquisition of the property.  Staff is still working on wording changes and expects to bring 
the final draft to Council at the next meeting. 
Councilmember Stockwin asked which property is being considered and how long after 
approval for the contract to go into effect. 
City Manager Miller stated that the City is proposing to purchase two properties, the RV 
sales lot and the property next to the car sales lot which currently has a small nursery.  
After the agreement is approved it will take 2-3 weeks for the appraisal and title transfer. 
 

7B. City Manager Compensation 

STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager and Mick Cabral, City Attorney 
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 04-2016 Authorizing Adjustment to the City 
Manager Contract as Provided for in the City Manager Employment Agreement. 
Councilmember Hesch stated that all of the Councilmembers had input into the City 
Manager evaluation.  He is glad to have Mr. Miller on board. 
Councilmember Stockwin concurred with a statement of the City Attorney.  The City is 
getting a good deal in Mark Miller. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Douglass and a second by Councilmember Hesch, Council 
approved Resolution 04-2016 Authorizing a 10% Adjustment to the City Manager 
Contract as Provided for in the City Manager Employment Agreement. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
NOES:  None 
 
 

ITEM 4A









ITEM 4B
3 of 10



ITEM 4B



ITEM 4B
5 of 10





ITEM 4B
7 of 10



ITEM 4B
8 of 10





ITEM 4B
10 of 10



1

 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR THE JANUARY 27, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director

DATE: January 15, 2016
SUBJECT: City of Colfax – Quarterly Investment Report

 

X N/A FUNDED UN FUNDED AMOUNT: FROM FUND:

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept and File City of Colfax Quarterly Investment Report: December 31, 2015.

SUMMARY:

Staff recommends that the Council accepts and files the Colfax Quarterly Investment Report for the quarter
ended December 31, 2015.

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:

California Government Code Section 53646 and the City of Colfax Investment Policy require a quarterly
investment report be submitted to the City Council. Such report shall include at least the following
information:

 Types of Investments;

 Name of the institution in which funds are invested or deposited;

 Date of Maturity, if applicable;

 Par and dollar amount investment for all securities;

 Percent distribution of each type of investment or deposit; current market value as of the date of
the report, including source of the valuation except those under LAIF;

 Rate of interest

 Average weighted yield of all investments

 A statement relating the report to the City’s Investment Policy; and

 A statement that there are sufficient funds to meet the City’s next six months’ financial obligations.

The current practice for cash management is to maintain an operating balance between $75,000 and
$150,000 in the City’s US Bank Corporate checking account. This account accumulates Earnings Credits
based on the account balance which offset/reduce monthly service charges. City funds in excess of
targeted operating balance are transferred to the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
on a weekly basis. The checking account balance may be reported at an amount higher than the target
balance by the Bank due to the timing of City checks being processed by vendors/service providers.

ITEM 4C
1 of 5





ITEM 4C



ITEM 4C





1

 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR THE JANUARY 27, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Travis Berry, Technical Services Manager
DATE: January 6th, 2016

SUBJECT: Plumbing Modifications for Dual Train Process Control at the Wastewater
Treatment Facility

 

N/A X FUNDED UN FUNDED AMOUNT: $13,108.48 (est.) FROM FUND: 560

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 05 2016 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Commercial Pump Service, Inc. for Plumbing Modifications of Critical Treatment
Processes at the Wastewater Treatment Facility in the Estimated Amount of $13,108.48.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION
The City’s wastewater treatment facility relies on an Aeromod SEQUOX™ Biological Nutrient Removal
process (BNR) to treat all of the City’s sewage. After treatment, the water is filtered, disinfected, and
discharged to an ephemeral streambed. Treated water that does not meet California’s water quality
standards is stored in ponds at the facility. It is the goal of the City to continually discharge treated water
to the streambed for several major reasons: additional costs are incurred when treating water more than
once, ample water storage space in the ponds must be available in case of a treatment process upset or
equipment failure, and the Regional Water
Board requires the City to maintain pond levels
as low as possible in preparation for a 100 year
rainfall event (for this region, 7.3” within 24
hours).

The BNR process is separated into two treatment
trains, Side A and Side B, pictured at right. In
order to keep both trains operating during low
volume influent flows to the facility, storage
pond water is mixed with influent wastewater to ensure there is enough volume for proper treatment. That
mixture is then pre treated with large volumes of chemicals to supplement for the missing, previously
processed out nutrients needed in the influent stream. Essentially, the City is adding ‘pseudo sewage’ to
the influent to keep the treatment facility operating within specifications. While these ‘pseudo sewage’
chemicals have proved to work when processing large volumes of storage water, it does not make sense to
pay more to treat less when dealing with low influent flows. How does the City prevent the added cost?
The solution is to run only one of the two treatment trains so the sewage to storage water ratio is greatly
increased. But, there’s a problem with that. The two trains are physically connected with major plumbing.
This plumbing needs to be modified to separate them and add the ability for each to be isolated when
needed.

ITEM 4D







Estimate
DATE

9/22/2015

ESTIMATE #

2078

NAME / ADDRESS

City of Colfax - WWTP
Travis Berry, Public Works
P.O. Box 702 / 33 S. Main St.
Colfax, CA. 95713

P.O. Box 674    Weimar, Ca. 95736

CONTACT

Travis Berry

PROJECT

Filter Piping Modifi...

TOTAL

DESCRIPTION QTY U/M EACH TOTAL

Estimate to upgrade piping at wastewater
treatment plant.   Install approximate 160' of
six inch sch 40 pvc drain pipe with 8"  valves
and fittings, Unistrut pipe  brackets and
supports to modify existing piping for
improving the filter piping system.     Install
temporary 150 GPM pump to by-pass
wastewater during pipeline construction.  
Prevailing wage rates apply.

160' of 6 " Schedule 40 PVC. 
two 8" Butterfly Valves 
three 6" butterfly valves
1 - 8x8x6" weld fabricated steel tee spool 
4 - 8" weld flanges
3 - 6" weld flanges
1 -  8x8x6" weld fabricated steel wye spool.
1 -  6x6x6 pvc tee 
6 -  6" Vansone Flange 
2 -  6" pvc 45 degree elbow 
2 -  8" pvc vansone flange 
2 -  6"pvc wye fitting 
Bolt packs  
Unistrut, 6" pipe clamps, anchors.

4,996.00 4,996.00T

Page 1

ITEM 4D
4 of 6









City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

2ÅÓÏÌÕÔÉÏÎ Ο 06-2016 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A COST SHARE 
AGREEMENT FOR APPLYING A SLURRY SEAL TO THE PAVEMENT IN THE 

CANYON CREEK VILLAGE SUBDIVISION 

 

WHEREAS, the Canyon Creek Village Subdivision was established in 1995 and the 
street infrastructure was subsequently accepted by the City of Colfax; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the 20-year-old pavement has received limited preventative 

maintenance since installation; and,  
 

WHEREAS, City staff recently completed a crack seal project in the Canyon Creek 
Village Subdivision and determined the asphalt would be a good candidate for a slurry seal 
to prevent further street surface deterioration; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Canyon Creek Village HOA has expressed the desire to share the cost of 

the Slurry Seal of Pavement Project ɉȰ0ÒÏÊÅÃÔȱɊ with the City by paying 100% of the Project 
costs for the private driveways and 52% of the Project costs for the City owned streets ɀ 
Canyon Creek Drive, Incline Drive, Canyon Creek Circle, plus two private driveways. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax that 
the City Manager is Authorized to Enter into a Cost Share Agreement for Applying a Slurry Seal 

to the Pavement in the Canyon Creek Village Subdivision. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Colfax held on the 27th day of January, 2016 by the following vote of the Council: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

___________________________________ 
       Tom Parnham, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 7A



 

         
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COST SHARE AGREEMENT TO BE PAID BY CANYON CREEK VILLAGE HOA 
 

This agreement is made between the City of Colfax, a California General Law City (“City”) and 

Canyon Creek Village Homeowners Association, a California Corporation (“HOA”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. City will provide road surface improvements located within Canyon Creek Village consisting 

of placing or causing to be placed approximately 86,221 square feet of slurry seal and related 

improvements on Canyon Creek Drive, Incline Drive, Canyon Creek Circle and various 

private drives, all as generally depicted on the map attached to this Agreement (the 

“Project”). 
 

B. HOA has expressed the desire to share the cost of the Project with the City by paying 100% 

of the Project costs for the private driveways and 52% of the Project costs for the City owned 

streets in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

C. As used in this Agreement, “HOA’s Cost Share Allocation” shall mean and refer to the 
HOA’s obligation to reimburse the City for 100% of the Project costs for the private 

driveways and 52% of the Project costs for the City owned streets. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. Payment.   The HOA shall pay HOA’s Cost Share Allocation to the City within 10 business 

days after the City provides the HOA with written notice that the Project has been completed 

and an invoice for the HOA Cost Share Allocation. Such payment shall be in lawful money 

of the United States and paid at 33 South Main Street, P.O. Box 702, Colfax, California 

95713. 
 

2. Binding On Successors. All terms, provisions, and obligations contained in this Agreement 

shall be binding upon the parties and their respective heirs, successors and assignees, and all 

other persons or entities, whether by operation of law or in any other manner whatsoever. 
 

3. Termination of Agreement.  This Agreement shall terminate upon receipt by the City of 

HOA’s payment in full of the HOA’s Cost Share Allocation. 
 

Recording Request by: 

City of Colfax 

When recorded return to: 

CITY OF COLFAX 

PO BOX 702 

COLFAX, CA 95713 

Attn:  City Clerk 

Above space for Recorder’s Use 

ITEM 7A
3 of 6







ITEM 7A
6 of 6



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE JANUARY 27, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Mick Cabral, City Attorney and Staff 

DATE: January 21, 2016 

SUBJECT: Introduction and First Reading of Ordinance № 528: An Urgency Ordinance of the 
City of Colfax Amending Colfax Municipal Code Title 17, Chapter 17.162 Prohibiting 
the Cultivation and Delivery of marijuana and the Operation of Medical Marijuana 
Dispensaries in the City of Colfax, an interim urgency ordinance to be effective until 
the November 8, 2016 Election at which time a Measure will be placed on the Ballot 
to determine the will of the people. 

 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $10,000 FROM FUND:  250 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Introduce Ordinance № 528 for first reading by title only and schedule for 
second reading public hearing and adoption at the February 10, 2016 regularly scheduled City Council 
meeting. 

 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY: 
 

On October 9, 2015, Governor Brown signed the “Medical Marijuana Regulation & Safety Act” (AB 243, AB 
266, and SB 643) (“MMRSA”) into law. The MMRSA became effective January 1, 2016.  It creates a state 
licensing and regulatory framework for medical marijuana cultivation and manufacturing of medical 
cannabis products, and for commercial medical cannabis activities including operation of dispensaries, 
distributions, and transporting. The MMRSA also regulates labeling of edible medical marijuana products, 
environmental problems caused by cultivation, and physicians who give excessive marijuana 
recommendations or recommendations without prior examination. 
 
The MMRSA permits cities and counties to prohibit medical marijuana cultivation or manufacturing, or 
commercial activities such as operation of dispensaries and other distribution facilities and activities under 
local ordinances or to continue regulating these activities in ways consistent with the new state law as long 
as cities and counties require state minimum regulations to be met.  Cities still have the power to ban or 
regulate these activities consistent with their communities’ unique needs. 
 
The immediate problem is that if cities do not have ordinances regulating marijuana cultivation in place by 
March 1, 2016, then State law dictates marijuana cultivation and other activities within city limits.  The 
legislature simply did not allow cities, especially small cities like Colfax, enough time to rationally discuss 
whether and, if so, how it wants to regulate marijuana cultivation, distribution, delivery and the like.  

ITEM 9A
1 of 11



2 

 

AB 21 is moving through the State Legislature. If passed, AB 21 will remove the March 1, 2016 deadline for 
cities to pass ordinances.  The bill is presently on the Senate floor. Passage of AB 21 may mitigate the 
urgency but not the need to regulate marijuana cultivation, delivery and dispensaries in the City. 
Staff is recommending that the Council adopt an interim urgency ordinance that prevents marijuana 
cultivation and delivery within City limits and continues to prohibit medical marijuana dispensaries. 
Consistent with Council direction, staff will move quickly to prepare a comprehensive regulatory ordinance 
and fee schedule for the Council to consider. The intent is to have an ordinance that can be placed on the 
ballot for approval or disapproval by the City’s residents at the November election. 
 

 
 
Attachments: 

a. Public Notice of Hearing to be held February 10, 2016 
b. Cover to Ordinance No. 528 
c. Ordinance No. 528 

ITEM 9A
2 of 11



City Colfax 

Notice of Public Hearing 

 

 

DATE and TIME:  February 10, 2016 at 7:00PM or as soon thereafter as the matter can be heard. 

 

LOCATION: Colfax City Hall, Council Chambers, 33 S. Main Street, Colfax, CA 

 

SUBJECT: Adoption of an Interim Urgency Ordinance amending Colfax Municipal Code Title 17, 

Chapter 17.162 prohibiting the cultivation and delivery of marijuana and the operation of medical 

marijuana dispensaries in the City of Colfax. 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Public Hearing will be held on February 10, 2016, beginning at 

7:00PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be heard, at Colfax City Hall, City Council 

Chambers, 33 S. Main Street, Colfax, California at which the City Council will consider adopting an 

urgency ordinance amending Colfax Municipal Code Title 17, Chapter 17.162 to prohibit the 

cultivation and delivery of marijuana and the operation of medical marijuana dispensaries in the City 

of Colfax.  The general purpose of the proposed interim urgency ordinance is to prevent the State 

from preempting the City regarding the cultivation and delivery of marijuana and the operation of 

marijuana dispensaries within City limits while a comprehensive ordinance and ballot measure are 

drafted. Copies of the proposed interim urgency ordinance may be inspected or obtained from the 

City Clerk at 33 South Main Street Colfax, California. 

 

 

Dated this 28
th

 day of January, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 9A
3 of 11


















	00A 160127 Agenda
	02A Circulation Element ant Traffic Workshop
	160127 SR Circulation Committee 
	2016-01-12 Memo_001_Roundabout Summary_Mark Miller_
	2016-01-12 Roundabout Feasibility Study

	04A Minutes
	04B Cash Summary Report
	160127 SR Cash Summary Dec 2015
	160127 Cash Summary Report Data

	04C Investment Report
	Quarterly Investment Report Dec 2015
	160127 Investment Report Data

	04D Wastewater Treament Plant Plumbing
	160127 SR Plumbing Modifications at WWTP 
	Resolution 05-2016 Treatment Plant Modifications 
	Estimate for Plumbing Modifications
	WWTP Schematic

	07A Canyon Creek Slurry Seal
	160127 SR Cost Share Agreement with Canyon Creek Village HOA for Slurry Seal of Pavement 
	160127 Reso Cost Share Agreement with Canyon Creek Village HOA for Slurry Seal of Pavement Resolution 
	Canyon Creek Village Cost Share Agreement
	Canyon Creek Slurry Seal Map 2015 
	160127 Acknowledgement from HOA

	09A Interim Urgency Ordinance
	160127 SR Medical Marijuana 
	160128 Hearing Notice
	160127 Ordinance Cover
	160127 Ordinance 528




